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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF GANDHAR OIL REFINERY (INDIA) LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Gandhar oil refinery (India)
Limited (*the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of
Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS") and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, the profit
and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standslone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilites for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the
independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fuffiled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics, We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon,

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion therson,
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in connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our auditor
otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regards.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directers is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)of the Act
with respect o the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs (financial posttion), profit or loss (financial performance including comprehensive
income}, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India inciuding the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

in preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disciosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management eithar intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for dvarsaeing the Company's financial reporting process,
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of thase standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidendce that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures ihat are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
CAct, 2013, we are also responsible for expreﬁsing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls sye-tem
controls.




« [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ahility to
continue as a going concern. if we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
gvidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
rmay cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial staterments,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. '

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the Financial Statement may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and gualitative
factors in (i} Planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work, and
(i} to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regardihg, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order") issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of thase books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account,

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021
taken on record by the Beard of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021
from being appointed as director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.




f}  With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B". Qur report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company's intemai financial controls over financial reporting.

g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended:;

tn our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to ite directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 1870f the Act,

h)  With respect o the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
aur information and according to the explanations given to us:

.. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements. Refer Note 33 {0 the standalone financial statement.

ii. Provision has been made in the standalone financial statements, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long term
contracts including derivative contracts.

. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Kailash Chand Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 112318wW

ership No.: 134607
Date: July 22 , 2021
Place: Mumbai

UDIN :21134607AAAAAGS796



(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, following are the particulars of disputed dues on account of income tax, sales tax,
service tax, goods and services tax, duty of customs and duty of excise duty, value added tax as at
March 31, 2021 which have not been deposited on account of dispute pending are as follows:

Sr. | Nature of Amount | Period to which Forum where pending
No. the dues {In Million) | the amount
relates .
1. | Sales Tax 1.89 FY 2002-03 | The Maharashtra Sales Tax Tribunal
2. | Sales Tax 0.97 FY 2014-15 Deputy Commissioner (Appeal) , Gujrat
3. | Sales Tax 7.93 FY 2011-12 Appellate Deputy Commissioner,
Visakhapatnam
4. | Sales Tax 12.27 FY 2012-13 | High Court, Andhra Pradesh N
5. | Entry Tax 2.56 FY 2012-13 | Addl. Commissioner of Commercial Taxes
{Appeal) :
6. { Custom 281652 FY 2012-13 The Custom, Excise & Service Tax
Duty Appellate Tribunal ]
7. | Custom 6.24 FY 2012-13 Commissioner of Customs & Central | .
Duty - Excise and Service Tax (Appeals)
8. | Custom 54.29 FY 201516 | The Customs, Excise & Service Tax
Duty Appellate Tribunal
9. | Custom 33.56 FY 2015-16 The Customs, Excise & Service Tax
Duty Appellate Tribunal
10.| Custom 24.46 FY 2015-16 The Customs, Excise & Service Tax
Duty Appeliate Tribunal
1, gu?tom 7.76 FY 2017-18 Appellate Authority Customs
Lity ‘ .
12.| Excise Duty 0,09 FY 2012-13to | The Commissioner of Central Excise
2016-17 (Appeals)
13, Sales Tax 0.58 FY 2016-17 Joint  Commissioner of Sales Tax
(Appeals) Maharashtra
14.| Sales Tax 18.56 FY 2016-17 Deputy Commissioner Appeal (VAT)
Dadra and Nagar Haveli
15.| Income tax 0.60 AY 2011-12 | ITAT-( Mumbai) 3
16,1 Income tax 3.72 AY 2012-13 | ITAT-( Mumbai)
17.{ Income Tax 88.49 ALY 2013-14 | ITAT- Mumbai
18.| Income Tax 383.66 AY 2014-15 | ITAT- Mumbai
19.| Income Tax 33.22 AY 2015-18 ITAT- Mumbai

viii, Accbrding to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of foans or borrowings to any financial
“institution or bank or Government or dues to debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

o The Company ha& not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

x During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out

in accordance with the Generally Accepted Auditing Pra
information and explanations given to us, we have neith

=R, India, and according to the
dthpsg any instance of material




fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

x  According to the information and explanation given to us, the managerial remuneration has
been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of
Section 187 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act.

xii. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Com_pany and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188
of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone
financial statements as required under Indian Accounting standard (Ind AS 24), Related Party
Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act,

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us during the year, the Company has not
made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly paid convertible
debentures and hence reporting under clause 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected
to its directors and hence reporting under clause 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For Railash Chand Jain & Co.
Chartered Actountants
Firm registration No. 112318W

Membership No.: 134607
Date:. July 22, 2021

Place: Mumbai

UDIN : 21134607 AAAAAGSHTO6



ANNEXURE“B” TO THE INDEPENDENTAUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1{f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Gandhar Oil Refinery (lndia)
Limited of even date.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (1) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Gandhar oil
refinery (India) Limited ("the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

‘Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
establishedbythe Companyconsiderngtheessentialcomponentsofinternalcontrolstated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internat Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Instituie of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the or delay an deficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporing of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section143(10)of the Companies Act,2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and peiform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting
of the Company.,




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reascnable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to pemit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and(3)provide reasonable asswance
regarding prevention or timely detaction of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, materiat
misstatements due to error or fraud may ocour and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Interna! Financial Controls Over

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Kailash Chand Jain & Cao.
Chanrtered Accountants
Firm registrat 0. 112318W

Dipesh

F’artneg f
Membership No.. 134607
Date: July 22, 2021
Place: Mumbai

UDIN 21134607 AAAAAGEHT96



Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

(T tm Milllon)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of Einansial Statements

MNote No. As at March 3, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
ASSETS
1. n = cutrgnt
a. Froperty, Pant and Equipment 3a 83012 059,24
b. Capltal Work-in-progress 3 216.72 124,32
. Invastment Properties da a7 40.50
d. Right-of-use assets 3 102.57 138,08
e, Other intangibla assets o 8.18 2.80
f. Flnancial Assels
(i} vesiments 4 2220 20.87
(i) Loans 5 44,34 2154
(ilf} Other Financial Assets & 27.08 10.52
9. Deferrad tax Assats (Net) 18 0.45 16.12
h. Qther Nom-current Assets 7 18,13 21.24 |
Tatal non-currant assets 1,383,144 1,355,490
2 sty
a. Inveniories B 1,986.09 1,848.59
b. Financial Aszets
(iy Trada recelvables ] 4,761.10 4,170.26
(I} Cash and cash equivalents 16 84,95 39,49
(i) Bank Batances othar than {ii) above 1% 973.85 808.72
(it} Losng & 17,72 14.68
(Iv) ©ther Financial Assets 8 T4.22 155,50
. Current Tax Assets (Net) 12 - 127,14
d, Qther current assets 7 811.60 1.005.42 |
Total current assots 8,689,563 8,170,860
TOTAL ASSETS 10,084.67 8 526,80
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
a. Equity Share Capital 13 160.00 -0
b, Other Equity 14 3,670,023 3,155,802
Total equity 3,830.03 3,316.82
SLIARILITIES
1. Noti-Cucrant Liabliitles
a. Finangial Liabilties
{i) Borrowings LE] 17871 181.10
(i) Lease Liabiliies 18 64,79 118.:
b. Provisions 17 28.81 2811
Tatal non-current llabilities 289.31 0282
2. Current Liabiiities
a. Einanclal Liatilitiag
{}} Borrowings 19 468,42 843,77
{ii} Leasa Liabilitias 18 51.53 38.80
{ili} Trade payables
- Total oulstanding dues of Micre and Small Enterprisas 20 18,99 19.1%
- Tolal outstanding dues of creditars ather than
Micre and Small Enterprises 20 8.088.92 4,608.38
{iv} Other Einansial Liabilities 3 225.07 164.99
b. Othar cutrent liabililies 22 108,21 148,56
. Provigione 17 4,62 4,50
4. Current Tax Llabilities (Net) 23 18.58 -
Total currant liabilitles 5882.34 5,908.18
Total ltabilities 6,259.85 6,210,868
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10,081.67 £,526.50
Corporats tnformation & Slgnificant Accounting Policles 142

Ag per our report of aven date attached
For Kallash Chand Jain & Co

Chartered Atsountants

Firtn Regiatration No: 112318W

Membarship No, : 134807

Placs | Mumbai
Date : July 22 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Gandhat Oil Rafinery {India} Limited

e (B

Ramoesh Parekh
Chairman & Managing
Direclor

DIN: 01108444

& i‘ \1@
shret Soni

Company Secretary

Membership No,08528

Place : Mumbai

' Date ; JulyZ2 2021

Samir Parakh
Direckor

DIN; 022265839

Aslesh Parekh
Director

DIN: 02226795




Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 3, 2021

(T in Millian)
For the year ended For the year ended
Nota No. March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

INCOME
Revenue from operations 24 19,844.02 23 663,22
Othet Income 25 66,49 158,19
Total Income 18,912.5% 23,821.41
EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 26 11,355.094 10,482 55
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 27 5,467.63 10,596.16
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work -in
Progress and Stock-in-Trade 28 515.02 431.43
Employee benefits expenss 29 23327 215,07
Finance Costs 3o 1.8 458.60
Depraciation and amortization expensze kY | 116.81 107.56
Other expenses 32 1,167 61 1,324,82
Total Expenses 19,199,998 23.616.03
Frofit Before Tax 712.52 206,38
Tax Expense ;
- Current Tax 184.00 48,00
- Deferred Tax 1532 {22.83)
- Excess/Shart Provision for tax - 4.09
Total Tax Expense 199.32 27146
Profit for the Year 613,20 178.22
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss

Remeasurement gain | {luss) on defined benefit plans 1.35 {0.02)

Income Tax on ltems that will not be reclassified to Profit or |Logs (0.34} 0.01
COther Comprehensive Incomea, net of tax 1.01 {0.01)
Total Comprehansive Income for the year 514.21 178.21
Earnings per Equity Share of face value of ¥ 10 ¢ach 44
-« Bagle and dliuted (ir ¥) 32.08 11.14
Corparate Information & Significant Accounting Policies 1&2

The accompanying notes form an Integral part of Financial Staternants

Az par our report of even date attached
For Kailash Chand Jain & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No; 112318W

Ramesh Parekh
Chairman & Managing
Dirsctor
RIN: 01108443
N o -
Dipesh Mehta \%_L:M w: ot Jayshrée Soni
Partner Cormpany Secretary
Membarship No. : 134607 Membership No.0B528
Placa ; Mumbai Plags : Mumbai

Date : July 22, 2021 Date : July 22, 2021

Samir Parekh
Director

DIN: 02225839

DI, 0222
__A__,J.nd

For and on behalf of the Board of Gandhar Oll Refinery (ndia) Limited

R L

e

Parekh
Directar




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Statemant of Changes in Bquity for the year ended March 31, 2021

Equlty 8hare Capital

As at

As at

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

" Nos, (2 In Milllon) Nos, (¥ In Million)
Balance &t the beginning of the reporting vear 1,60,00,000 160.00 1,60,00,000 160.00
Changas in aguity ehare capltal during the year - “ u
Balance at the end of the reporiing year 1,600,000 160.00 1,60,00.000 160.00
(¢ in Million)
itams of Other
Reserves and Surplus Gomprehenslva
Ineome Total
Remeasurements
i‘:ﬁ;’:ﬂ;ﬁ Ganaral Reserve g;t::’?;: of the net defined
Othar Equity banefit Plans
Balance at April 1, 2019 460.00 1,118.50 1,487.24 (0.71) 3,065,072
Trangliion impact of Lease as per IND AS 118 (net
of tax) (Refar note 3{d){a}) {15.42) - {15.42)
Restated balance as at the baginnlng of the year 460,00 1,118.50 1,471.82 0.71) 3,0490.60
Profit for the year - u 178.22 u 178.22
Other Comprehenalve Incoma n - " (0.04) {0.013
Intarim Dividend on Equity Shares - - (72.00) (72.0M
Balance at March 21, 2020 450,00 1,118.50 1.678.04 {0.72} 3,165.82
Profit for the yaar - - 513.20 - 51320
Oiher Comprahensive Income - “ - 1M 1.01
Balance at March 31, 2021 450.00 1,118.60 2,081.24 0.29 3,670.04

Nota

Tha nature and purpose of each of the Reserves have been explainad under Nota 14 Olher Equity

Ag par our raport of even date attached
For Kallash Chand Jain & Co

Charterad Accountarma

Flrm Registeation No: 142318W

Place : Mumbal
Data @ July 22, 2021

Rainash Parekh
Chairman & Managing
Director

OtN: 01108443

¢ S0
Jayshred Bonl™

Company Sacrataty
Membership No.06528

S

Place : Mumbai
Data

tJuly 22, 2021

v y A
Jar e w@@ o

Samir Parakh
Diractor

BiIN: 022256838

For and on hehalf of the Board of Gandhar Oil Refinary (India) Limited

AbigetrBarakh
Director

DiN, 02225795




Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2021

{2 in Million)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 37, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

A Caah flow from Operating activities
Profit before exceptional ltems and tax
Adjustment for :
Finance Costs
Depreciation and amortization expanse
Met (Gain) / [oss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Gain on closure of subsidiary company
Bad debts / Advances writlen off
Provigion far Raubtful Debtz (net of write bagk)
Accrual {gain} / loss of defingd benefit plans
Net unreallsed foreign exchangs (gain)loss
bividend income or Investments
Fair value (gainfoss on investments
Interest recaived :

Cperating Profit before working capital changes
Adjusiment for :

Financial Assets

Non -« Financial Assets

Invantotles

Financial Liabllitles

Nen-Financial Liabilities

lLess: Excaptional Rams

Cash genoerated from operations

Income Tax (paid) f refund

Net Gash generated From/ {used in) Operating Actlvitlas (A)

B i
Sals/{Addition)offto property, plant and equipment and investmant
properties
Sate/{Addition)of/io Investrments
Interast received
Dividend Insema on nvestmeants
Net Cash genarated fromf(used in) investing Activitles (B)
L Caah tiows fr inangi
Elnance Costs
Proceeds / repayment frormf{of) long-term borrowings
Proceeds / repayment from/(of) Shor-term borrawings

Fised Dopusits and margin deposit with bank not constdered as gash
wquivalents -earmarked bank balancas (net) (Refer note no. 3 below)

Dividend pald (including dividend tax)

Principal payment of lease liabilities

Finance Casls pald towards lease abilities

Net cash generated from/iused in) financing activities (G)

Net ingrease /(decrease) in cash and cash eguivalents (A + B + C)

Cash and cash equivaients at the baginning of the year
Cash and cash aguivalents st the end of the year

262 205.38
341.81 458,60
116.84 107.66
(1.80) 0.04)
- {3.43)
168,98 15,14
11,19 .
1,385 {0.02)
{5.18) 148,37
- (73.56)
{0.33) {0.04)
(45.13) (74.50)
58770 677.78
1,300.22 143,18
(707.45) 960.89
197,23 81,05
{137.56) 679.57
443,14 (2,275.84)
(39.57) {16.30)
(244.24) {570.63)
1,065,598 212 63
1,055.98 212,53
(38.27) 9,02
1,017.11 22245
(104.44) {166.95)
{1.00) 5223
45.13 7450
. 73596
(60.41) 3374
(322.26) (444.17)
24,68 114,14
(375.35) B3.44
(180.66) 138 .86
- {72.00)
{38.80) (29.22)
{19.53) {14.43)
(811.94) (263.36)
45.46 283
39.49 36,66
84,95 49.49




Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2021

(¥ in Miilion)

Particulars For the year ended For the yaar ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Motes:
{1} Somponents of Cash and Cash aculvalants
Gash on hand 3,35 B3
Eralts on hand - 1.20
Balaricas with banks
- |1 currant accounts 1294 13,63
= in Cash Credit Account 65,88 15.49
- In Expori Earners Fareign Currency Account 0.60 0.44
- Tartn Deposit aceaunt with bank 1,000.91 820.24
Less: Excluded as per Nota-3 {1,000.91) u (830, 24) -
24.85 35,49

—

(2) Staterment of Cash Flow has been prepared under the indirect method as set out In Indian Accounling Standard: (Ind AS 7) - *Stetement of Cash Fiow”.
(3) Cash and Cash equivalents axchudes Fixed Deposits with Banks which have been pladged.
(4) Change in Liabitity arising fromm financing activities

{¥ in Mililon)
Particulars Az at March 31, 2020 Gash flow Eoraign exchange  As at March 31,
mavament 2021

Borrawing ~ Non Gurrent (Refer Nota 15) 161.10 14,62 u 175.11
Borrowing - Cument (Refer Note 19) 84377 {370,00) (5.95) 468,42
Gurrent Maturities of Long-Term Borrowlngs : 18,78 10.07 - 28,85
Total 1,023.65 (145.32) {5.35) §72.59
Az per our report of even date Far and on behalf of the Board of Gandhar Ol Refinery (India) Limitad

For Kaliagh Chand Jain & Co

Chartered Accountants M,..- ' o
Firm Registration No: 112318W L/"_\)\\«ﬂ /&Qw - EERP_/-"

Ramesh Parekh Samir Parekh arokh

Chairman & Managing  Director Director
Director
DIN: 01108443 DIN: 02225839 DIN; 02225705

g
Jayshrea Soni
Gompany Secretary
Membership No.0&528

Place : Mumbai Flaca : Mumbai
Date . July 22, 2021 , Date - July 22, 2021




Note 1 : General Information :

(B

(i)

Corporate information

Gandhar Qil Refinery (India) limited ('The Company') was incorporated on October 7,1992
under Companies Act, 1956 as a private limited company . The Company was subsequently
converted into a public limited cormpany on August 22,2005 The Company is domiciled in india
having registered office at 18th floor, DLH park, Goregaon (West), Mumbai -400062,
Maharashtra, India.

The Company is principally engaged in three segments namely, manufacturing and trading of
petroleum products / specialty oils, trading of non-coking coal and providing consignment / del-
credere agency services for safe of polymers to local markets. The Company has its
manufacturing facilitles located at MIDC Taloja, Maharashtra and Silvassa {U.T.) along with
branch offices and various depots across the country.

Authatisation of financial statements
The standalone financial staterments were approved for issue in accordanee with a resolution of
the Board of Directors passed on July, 22, 2021

Basis of Preparation

This note provide a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation and
presentation of these standalone financlal statements.

Compliance with Ind AS:

The standaloneg financial statements have been prepared to comply, in all material aspects,
with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant
to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 3 of Cormpanies (indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and the relevant amendment Rules issued thereafter.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to alt the periods presented in the financial
statements.

Classification of assets and liabilities:

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current based on the Company's
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Division Il to Schedule I to the Companies
Act, 2013,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current on net basis.

For the above purposes, the Company has determined the operating cycle as twelve months
based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing
and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

Basis of Measurement .
The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis under the
historical cost convention except:

(@) certain financial instruments (including derivative instruments) and

{(©) defined benefit plans

which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in indian rupees, which is the Company's functional




Critical estimates and Judgements

Preparations of the financial statements require use of accounting estimates which, by
definition, will seldom equal the actual results. This note provides an overview of the areas that
involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and items which are more likely to be
materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those
originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is
included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each
affected line item in the Financial Statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

i} Estimation of useful life of tangible assets : Note 2(1)

i) Estimation of defined benefit chbligations: Nofe 35

i) Fair value measurements: Note 41 (ji)

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have financial impact on the
company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Measurement of fair Values

The Company measures certain financial assets and financial liabilities including derivatives
and defined benefit plans at fair value,

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair
values. The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing 'services, is used to
measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence obtained from the third
parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of ind AS,
including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a fiability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either

a) in the principal market for the asset or liability or
b} in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants wolild use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their econamic best interest. .

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Leval 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or ligbilities,
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest leve! input that is significant to the fair
vaiue measurement is directly or indirectly observable. ‘
Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred be W iglFe N the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input thap sSiemiticel
measurement as @ whole) at the end of each reporting peri




Recent accounting pronouncements
On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification, amended
Balance Sheet:
(8) Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilities', duly
(b}  Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in
(c)  Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters
(d) Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-
(e) if a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from
(fh  Specific disclosure under 'additional regutatory requirement’ such as:
(i) Compliance with approved schemes of arrangements
(i) Compliance with number of layers of companies
(ili) Title deeds of immovable property not held in name of company
(iv) Loans and advances to promoters and directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and
(v) Details of benami property held
(g) Various ratios;

Current Ratio Trade Receivables turnover ratio
Debt-Equity Ratia Net capital turnover ratio

Debt Service Coverage Ratio Net profit ratio

Return on Equity Ratio Return on Capital employed
Inventory turnover ratio Return on investment

Trade Receivables turnover ratio

Global Pandemic COVID 19 Impact on Financlal Statements

The Company has assessed the possible impact of COVID-19 on its financlal statements
based on the internal and external information available up to the date of approval of these
financial results and concluded no adjustment is required in these results, Based on its
assessment of business / economic conditions and current circumstances, managment expeacts
no significant impact on the continuity of operations of the business on long term basis/ on
vseful life of the assets/ on financial position etc. though there may be lower revenues in the
near term. bty




Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

Note 2 : Significant Accounting Policies
1 Property, Plant and Equipment

(i)

(i)

(iif)

Recognition and Measurement :

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) are measured at Original cost and are net of tax / duty
credit availed less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of PPE outstanding at each reporting date are classified
as capital advances under Other Non-Current Assets-and Property, Plant and Equipment which
are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as ‘Capital work-
in-progress”.

Capital expenditure on tangible assets for Research and Development is ciassified under
Property, Plant and Equipment and is depreciated on the same basis as other Property, Plant
and Equiprment.

Property, Plant and Equipment are eliminated from financial staterment on disposal and gains or
losses arising from disposal are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss in the year of
occurrence,

Lease arrangements for land are identified as finance lease, in case such arrangements result
in transfer of the related risks and rewards to the Company

The cost of the property, plant and equipment's at April 01, 2016, the company's date of
transition to Ind AS, was determined with reference to its carrying value at that date.

Subsequent expenditure :

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Al other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in
which they are incurred.

When Significant parts of Property, Plant and Equipment's are required to be replaced, the
Company derecognises the replaced part and recognises the new part with its own associated
useful life and it is depreciated accord‘ingly.

Depreciation :

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment other than improvements to
Leasehold/Licensed Premises have been provided on straight-line method and computed with
reference to the useful life of raspective assets specified and in the manner prescribed in
Schedule il of the Companies Act, 2013.

In case of additions/deductions to/from the property, plant and equipment made during the
year, depreciation has been provided on pro-rata basis.
Leasehold land is amortized over primary lease period.

Improvements to Leasehold/Licensed Premises are depreciated on a straight-line method over

the Primary Lease Period or over a period of 5 years whichever is less stﬂting from the date
el




Useful life considered for calculation of depraciation (Specified in Schedule i) for various
assets class are as follows:

Asset Class Useful life
Factory Building 30 years
Non-Factory Building 60 years
Plant & Equipments 15 years
Furniture & Fixtures : 10 years
Vehicles 8 years
Air Conditioners 10 years
Laboratory equipments : 10 years
Office Equipments 5 years
Computers 3 years
Electrical Fittings 10 years
Improvemnent in Leased Asset 5 years

The residual value is not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. Depreciation on
additions / deletions Is calculated pro-rata from month of such additions / deletion as case the
may be. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying
amount. These are included in Statement of profit and loss.

2 Investment Properties

0

(ii)

Recognition and Measurement :
Investment Property comprise of Freehold Land and Buildings.

investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumutated impairment loss, if any.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed off or when they
are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their
disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceads and the carrying amount of the
asset is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of derecognition.

The cost of the Investment properties at April 01, 20186, the company's date of transition to Ind
AS, was determined with reference to its carrying value at that date.
Depreciation

Depreciation on investment Property is provided, under the Straight Line Method, pro rata to
the period of use, based on useful fives specified in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

Useful life considered for calculation of depreciation (Specified in Schedule 1) for various
assetls class are as follows:

Asset Class Useful life
Non-Factory Buikding 30 years

The residual value is not more than 5% of the origina! cost of the asset. Depreciation on
additions / deletions is calculated pro-rata from month of such additions / delation as case the
may be. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying
amount. These are included in Staterment of profit and loss. \
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intangible Assets

(i)

(in)
(i)

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits that are
attributable to concerned assets will flow to the Company and the cost of the assets can be
measured reliably.

Gain or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible asset is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss,

Technical know-how developed by the Company-

Expenditure incurred on know-how developed by the company, post research stage, is
recognized as an intangible asset, if and only if the future economic benefits attributable are
probable fo flow to the Company and the costs can be measured reliably.

Amortisation

Software's are stated at cost of acquisition and are amortized on straight line basis over a
period of 5 years irrespective of the date of acquisition.

The cost of technical know-how developed is amortized equally over its estimated life i.e.
generally three years.

The cost of the Intangible Assets at April 01, 2016, the company's date of transition to Ind AS,
was determined with reference to its carrying value at that date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying values of assets / cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed for
impairment if any indication of impairment exists.

if the carrying amount of the assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, impairment is
recognized for such excess amount. The impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case any
impairment loss of the revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent a revaluation
reserve is available for that asset.

When there is indication that an impairment loss recognized for an asset in earlier accounting periods
which no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, to the extent the amount was previously charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss

investments in Subsidiaries and Jointly Controlled Entities

nvestments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any as per Ind As 27. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying
amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount, On
disposal of investments in subsidiaries, and jointly controlted entities the difference between net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Inventories

Raw Materials, Traded Goods, Stores & spares, Fuel, Packing and Packaging Materials

(Including in Transit) are valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower. The cost

includes the purchase price, freight inwards and other expenditure directly attributable to the
(i  acquisition and is net of trade discounts and rebates as well as Tax benefit available, if any,

Finished goods (including in Transit) are valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is
(i)  lower. Cost includes appropriate allocation of overheads based on normal operating capacity

Cost is arrived at on First-in-First-out basis in case of Traded goods and on moving Weighted
(i)  average basis in case of other items of inventories.

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand , balances with bariks in current accounts, and
cheques/drafts on hand.

Assets held for Sale

sale’ when all of the following criteria's are rmet:

(i) decision has been made to sell;

(if) the assets are available for immediate sale in its present condition:

(iii) the assets are being actively marketed and

(iv) sale has been agreed or is expected to be concluded within 12 months of the Balance Sheet
date.

Subsequently, such non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of its carrying value and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets held for sale are
not depreciated or amortised.

Financial Assets :
(i) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value, in case of Financial assets
which are recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss, In other cases, the transaction cost is attributed
to the acquisition value of the financial asset.

(iy Subsequent measurement

Financial assets are subsequently classified and measured at
(iy Amortised Cost
(i) fair Value through profit & Loss { FVTPL)
(ii} fair Value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.
(i) Trade Receivables and Loans

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value, Subsequently, these assets are held at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses.
The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future cash income through the expected life of
financial instrument. by
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(iv)

(v)

v

Debt Instruments

Debt instruments are initially measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (‘FVQCH) or fair value through profit or loss ('FVTPL') till derecognition
on the basis of :

() the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and

(i) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

(a) Measured at amortised cost: Financial assets that are held within a business model| whose
Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income: Financial assets that are held

within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and
coltecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principatl and interest, are
subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value
movements are recognized in the other comprehensive incoma (QC)). Interest income
measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously

(b) recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to 'Other Income' in the Statement of Profit
Measured at fair value through profit or loss: A financial asset not classified as either
amortised cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at
fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if

(c) any, recognised as ‘Other Income’ In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity Instruments and Mutual Fund

All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at
fair value, the Company may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same
either at FVOC] or FVTPL.

The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes
on an equity instrument is recognised as other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss
unless the Company has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCL. Fair value changes
excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVOC) are recognized in QOCI.
Amounts recognised in QCI are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and
Loss. Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised as ‘other
income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the asset.

Impairment of Financial Asset

Expected credit losses are recognized for all debt instruments subsequent to initial recognition
other than financials assets in FVTPL category.

For financial assets other than trade receivables, as per Ind AS 109, the Company recognises
12 month expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting
date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial
recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the
credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial recognition. The Company's
trade receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on trade
receivables is measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash
shortfall. :
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Financial Liabilities :

(i) Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost
unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and loss. In case of
trade payables, they are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently, these liabilities are
held at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

(i) Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method,
Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all
changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

(i)  Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the helder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a dabt instrument. Financial
guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the lability is
maasured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind-AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amartisation.

(iv} Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial fiabifities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
infention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts to hedge its
foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair vaiue
at the end of each reporting period. The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if 5o, the nature of item being
hedged and the type of hedge relationship designated.

Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities
when the fair value is negative.




13 Provisions and Contingent Liabitities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event; it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and when a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are
measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settie the present obligation af the
Balance Sheet date. The expenses refating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and
Loss net of any reimbursement.

expected future cash flows specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as
finance cost,

Contingent liabilittes are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obiigation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

A contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements where an inflow of
economic benefit is probable.

Commitments includes the amount of purchase orders (net of advance) issued to parties for
acquisition of assets. Provisions, contingent assets, contingent liabilities and commitments are

14 Revenue Recognition

Effective April 1 2018, the company adepted Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.” The effect on adoption of IND AS 115 is insignificant,

Revenue is recognised when control of goods is transferred to a customer in
accordance with the terms of the contract. The control of the goods is transferred upon
delivery to the customers either at factory gate of the Company or Specific location of the
customer or when goods are handed over to freight carrier, as per the terms of the contract.
A receivable is recognised by the Company when the goods are delivered to the
customer as this represents the point in time at which the right to consideration becomes
unconditional, as only the passage of time is required before payment is due,

Revenue from services is recognised upon completion of services.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled as per contract with a customer. The consideration is determined based on the price
specified in the contract, net of estimated variable consideration. Accumulated experience is
used to estimate and provide for the variable consideration, using the expected value method,
and revenue is recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will
not occur. Revenue excludes any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government which
are levied on sales such as goods and services tax.

Insurance Claims are accounted when the ultimate outcome of the same is certain and amount
ascertained. Till the time of uncertainty about outcome and amount of claim, their recognition is
postponad.

Dividends are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss only when the right 10 receive
payment is established:, It is probable that economic benefit associated with the Dividend will




For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR), which is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receaipts through the expected life of the financial instruments or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial assets. Interest incorne is
included in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Income on assets given on operating lease is recognised on a straight line basis over the lease
term in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Eligible export incentives are recognised in the year in which the conditions precedent
are met and there is no significant uncertainty about the collectability,

15 Employee Benefits
(i)  Short Term Benefits
All employee benefits including leave encashment (short term compensated absences) and
bonus/ex-gratia (incentives) payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are

classified as short term employee benefits and are charged fo the Statement of Profit and Loss
of the year. :

{i) Post Employment Benefits

{(a) Defined Contribution Plans
Retirement/Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance
and fabour welfare fund are considered as defined contribution plan and contributions to
the respective funds administered by the Government are charged to the Statement of
profit and loss of the year when the contribution to the respective funds are due

(b} Detined Benefit Plans
Retirement benefits in the form of gratuity is considered as defined benefit obligation and
is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made
as at the date of the Balance Sheet. Gratuity liahility is non-funded.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and

losses are recognized immediately in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Net interest

expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) is computed by applying the discount

rate, used to measure the net defined liability (asset). Net interest expense and other

expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.
(c) Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

As per the present policy of the Group, there are no other long term benefits to which its
employees are entitled.
(d) Terminal Benefits

All terminal benefits are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred




16 Leases:

At the inception of a contract, the Compary assesses whether a confract is or contains, a
lease. A contract is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys the right ta control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange of consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an asset the Company assesses whether:

The contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be specified explicitly or
implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capability of a
physical distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not
identified.

The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
asset throughout the period of use; and

The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it
has the decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose
the asset is used.

As alessee
Right-of-use Asset

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset at cost which
comprises initial measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs incurred by the
lessee; and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Lease Liability

At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall be discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use the lessee's incremental borrowing rate,

Short-term lease and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-
term leases that have a lease term of less than 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The election for short-term leases shall be made by class of underlying asset to which the right
of use relates. A class of underlying asset is a grouping of underlying assets of a similar nature
and use in Company's operations. The election for leases for which the underlying asset is of

low value can be made on a lease-by-lease basis.
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Research and Development Expenditure

(i) Revenue expenditure on Research & Development is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
of the year in which it is incurred.

However, expenditure incurred at development phase, where it is reasonably certain that outcome of
research will be cornmercially exploited to vield economic benefits to the company is considered as
intangible assets and accounted in the manner specified in Clause 3 (i) above.

(i} Capital expenditure incurred during the year on Research & Development is included under
additions {0 property, plant and equipment's.

Exceptional tems

When items of income and expense within statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities are of
such size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the parformance of the
enterprise for the period, the nature and amount of such materiat items are disclosed separately as
exceptional items, :

Segment Reporting
The Chief Operational Decision Maker monitors the operating results of its business Segments

separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit and loss and is measured
caonsistently with profit or loss in the financial statements.

The Accounting Policies adopted for segment reporting are in fine with the Accounting Policies of the
Company. Segment assets include alf operating assets used by the business segments and consist
principally of fixed assets, trade receivables and inventories. Segment liabilities include the operating
liabilities that result from the operating activities of the business.

Segment assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated between the segments are shown as part of
unallocated corporate assets and liabilities respectively. Income / Expenses relating to the enterprise
as a whole and not allocable on a reasonable basis to business segments are reflected as
unallocated corporate income / expenses.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds and is measured with reference to the effective interest rate applicable to the
respective borrowing. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of an assat that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset till the date it is put to use. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs also include exchange differences
to the extent that are regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs,

Foreign Exchange Transactions
@ The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is
Company’s functional and presentation currency.
(ii)
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using exchange rate
prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date. The difference arising on settlement or translation on
account of fluctuation in the rate of exchange is dealt within the Statement of Profit and Loss.
(iiD)
Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in
the Statement of Profit and Loss, as finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other gains / {losses).
(iv) Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

translated using the exchange rates at the ﬁ’",n initial transactions,
' N/ )
A




22 Taxes on lncome

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax and is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in OCI.

(i}

Current Tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences arising between the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes,

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date andg
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves,

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be used. ‘

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable fight to offset
current tax assets and labilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are off set where the Company has a tegally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

22 Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss) for the period atiributable to
the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit / (loss) for the period
attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

23 Expected Credit losses and Impairment losses on investment

The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortised cost annually or more
frequently when there is indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying

amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.
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a)

b)

c)

a)

3 (¢) Investment Propertios ' {¥ In Millian)

| Freehold Land Building Total

Gross Carrylng Amount

As at April 1, 2019 548 37.54 43,02
Additions .

Disposal and adjustments “ - -
Az at March 31, 2020 5.48 37.54 43.02
Additions -

Disposal and adjustments - 36 a5
As at March 31, 2021 548 1.89 737
Pepreciation

As at April 1, 2019 - 1.82 1.82
Charge for the year - 0.61 0.61
Digposal and adjustments - - i
As at March 31, 2020 - 2.42 2.42
Charge for the year - 0.59 0.50
Disposal and adjustments - 3.02 3.02

As at March 31, 2021 - - .

Net Carrying Amount

As at March 31, 2020 5.48 36,12 40.59
As at March 31, 2021 5.48 1.89 7.37
Notes

Falr value

As at March 31, 2020 6.03 46.54 52,97
Az at March 31, 2021 6.03 15.74 M.77

Information regarding Income and expenditure of Investment Property

202021 2019-20

Rental Income derived from Investrment properties - .
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) generating rental income - -
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) that did not generate rental (0.24) {0.21)
income :

(0.24) {0.21)
Frofit arising from investment properties before depreaciation and indirect expenses
Less - Depreciation (0.51) {0.61)
Profitioss) arising from investmant properties before indirect expenses (0.84) (0.82)

The Company's investment properties consist of 2 properties in Indla as on March, 31 2021. The company has sold 2 properies
during the year out of 4 properties as on March 31, 2020. The management has determined that the Investment property consists
of two class of assets - Free hald Land and building - based on the nature, characteristics and risks of each property.

The Company has no restriction on the realisability of its investment properties and no contractual obligations to purchase,
construct or develop investment propenies or for repairs, maintenance and enharicements.

The fair valuation is based on current prices in the active market for simitar properties. The main input used are quantum, area,
location, demand, age of building and trend of fair market rent in the location of the property.

The fair value is based oh valuation performed by an accredited independent valuer. Fair valustion is based on replacement cost
methed. The fair value measurement is categorised in level 2 fair value hisrarchy.

Refer Note 15 & 19 on Long term Borrowing and short term Borrowings for amounts of restrictions on the title and Investment
properties pledged as securities.




3 {d) Right of use assets (% in Nillion)
e | T
Gross Carrying Amount
Recoginised at April 1, 2019 (transition) 176.60 176.60
Additions - -
Disposal and adjustments - -
As at March 31, 2020 176.60 176.60
Additions 11.08 11.08
Disposal and adjustments - -
As at March 31, 2021 187.68 187.68
Amortization
As at April 1, 2019 “ -
Charge for the year 38.54 38.54
Disposal and adjustments - -
As at March 31, 2020 38.54 38.54
Charge for the year 46.57 46.57
Disposal and adjustments - -
As at March 31, 2021 85.1 85.11
Net Carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2020 138.06 138.06
As at March 31, 2021 102,57 102.57

Notes

The Company has leasing arrangements for its office premises -head office and certain plots .
Non-cancellable period for those lease arrangements vary. The Company pays lease charges
as fixed amount as per the respective lease agreements. In respect of Ind AS 116 » Leases,
the Company has adopted modified retrospective method under which the cumulative effect of
initial application is recognized in retained earnings at 1st April 2019, Right-of-use asset is
measured, on a lease by lease basis, at carrying amount assuming the standard is applied
since the commencement date. Discounting to arrive the value of asset is done based on the
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.

The Company has leasing arrangements for its various commercial premises (other than
mentioned above). Non-cancellable period for those leasing arrangements are loss than 12
months and the Company elected to apply the recognition exemption for short term and leases
for which the underlying assets is of low value. The lease amount is charged as rent.




3 (e) Intangible assets {¥ in Million)
o | To
Gross Carrying Amount
As at April 1, 2019 7.02 7.02
Additions 1,57 1.57
Disposal and adjustments - -
As at March 31, 2020 L. _8.59 8.59
Additions "8.29 8.29
Disposal and adjustments - -
As at March 31, 2021 | _16.88 16,88
Amortization
As at April 1, 2019 425 4.26
Charge for the year 153] 1 .53H
Disposal and adjustments - -
As at March 31, 2020 | 5.79 | ___5.79 |
Charge for the year [ 1W T 1.1
Disposal and adjustments - -
As at March 31, 2021 7.70 7.70
Net Carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2020 2.80 2.80
As at March 31, 2021 9.18 9.18

Notes

Refer Note No. 37 for expenditure on Research and development,
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FINANCIAL ASSETS
INVESTMENTS

Investment In acuity instroments

{fully paid-up)

Subsidiary companies | JoInt venture company’
measured at cost

Unguated

In foraign subsidiary companies - wholly owned

In Gandhar Ol & Enargy DMCC of Arab Emirates Ditham
1000 aach*

* Buns shares - 1900 Bonus shares received during the
year 2018-19) '

In Indlan suisidiary - wholly ewned

in Gandhar Shipping & Logistics Pvt. Limited of ¥ 10 each
Total (i}

In Joknt Venturas
In Taxol Lubritech £20C of Arab Emirates Dirharm 1000
aach

Total (i)
Totad (i)

Investments in Governmaont or Trust
sncuritles measured at amortised cost
Unquoted

Government Bonds

Unils of face value of T 100 mach

National Saving Certificates-VIil Issue
(Lodged With Sales Tax Autherilies)
Total (B)

Investment [n Mutual Funds (At FVTPL)

Ungualed

Units of T 10 each of Barody Large & Mideap Fund
Total {C}

Total {A+B +C)

Aggregate Amount of Qutoted Investments
Apgragate Amount of unquoted Investments

Aggragale Amount of Impalrment in the Value of Investments

Az at As at
March 31, 2021 farch 31, 2020
MNo. of No. of
Shares/Units (¥ in Mlllton) Shares/nits {¥ in Milllon)
2,000 1.79 2,000 1.78
10,00,000 10.00 10,00,000 10.00
11.78 11.79
500 8.72 500 B8.72
8.72 872
20.51 20.51
1687 0.37 3,687.00 0.32
0.04 0.04
.41 0.36
69,285.00 1.28 - -
1.28 .
22.20 .87
- 0
22.20 20.87




s

LOANS

A Security Depoghs
-To related Parlies [Refer note 36(BY4)(0)]
-To Others
Total {A)
B Other Loans
Loans to Employees
Total (B)
Total {A+H})

Break-up

Loans considered goad - Secured

Loans considered good - Unsecured .
Leans which have significant Incraase in credit risk
l.0ans - credit impaired

Totsl

Less: Allowanca for doubtiul Loans

Total Loans

{¥ in MiiHion)

Mon Currant
Az at

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Currant
As at

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

3955 13.82 - -
2.14 7.03 16.20 18.83

31,69 20.85 16,20 13,53
0.65 0.69 1.52 1.92
0.65 0.68 1.52 1.32

43.34 21.54 17.72 14.86

WMarch 31, 2021

Mareh 31, 2020

March 31, 202

March 31, 2020

"

"

Refer Nole 42 for Information about credt risk and market risk far loans.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

1) Foraign Exchange Confract Receivable
i) Other Receivables
- from others

li) Term Deposits Accounts {wilh maturity more than 12

months) Refer nota {(a) balow
) inlares! accrued on fixed deposits
v} Interest accrued on Investmenls

453,34 21.54 17.72 14.85
49,34 21.54 17.72 14.85
49,34 21.54 17,72 14 86
(¥ in Miltion)
Nott Current Currant
As at Ag at

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

- - “ Ir.as

- - 2516 34.19

. - 26.15 3418
27.06 10.52 - -

- - 48.04 83.33

- - 0,03 0.03
#7.06 10.62 74.22 153.60

a) InTerm Duposits Accounts held as margin for Letter of Cradil! Suppliers CrediVSBLC/Barik Guarantees lssuad by banks,




GANDHAR OIL REFINERY {INDIA) LIMITED
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(A)

()

OTHER ASSETS

(Unsecured, considarad good )
Capital advances

Tutal (A)

Other Advances recevarable In cash or kind or far
vatue to ba recolved

1} Bslances with ihe Government authoritiez
Balances wilh the statutory authorities

Ceposits with government Authorities
iy Advances to supplier
- Considered Good
- Gansidarad Doubtful

- Provisian for Qoublful Advances

iy Prepald Expenses
Total {B)
Total {A+ B)

INVENTORIES

Raw Materials

Finlshad Geods

Stock-in-trade

Stores & Spares

Packing & Packaglng Materials
Fugl

Motes

2) Refar Note 19 for Inventories hypothecated as security for curment borrowings

b} Finished Goads includes Stack in transit

{¥ in Milllany

Non Currant Cutrant
Az at Az at
Mareh 34, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020 Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

12.57 11.97 - -

12.87 11.97 - -
. - 542.02 639.52
2743 34.01
“ “ 210,32 267 87
w “ 210.32 267.87
“ . 210.32 267 87
5.55 .68 31.83 B3.02
[ X] .88 B811.60 1,006.12
18,13 : 21.84 811.60 1,006.12

(¥ in Miillon)
Az at A% at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2020
1,278.89 639.08
286.50 172.22
367.67 498.87
1.38 .44
53.70 36.29
0.95 0.86
1,.286.08 1,848.51
4477 5.86

1{’,?

O \
1.»

(L’;p\\i\ b "ﬂ
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(T in Miion)
TRADE RECEIV, As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Consiered Good - Securad - .
Considered Good - Unsecurad 4.751.10 4.170.26
Trade Recelvablas which have significart increase in Credit Risk }
Trade Receivables - cradil impaired $1.49 .
4,762.29 4,170.26
Less; Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 1.8
4,751.10 4,170.26
Hotas
Refer note [36 {B)(4){e)) for smounts from ralated parlies
The company's expasure to credit and currency risk related 1o irade receivables are disclosed in note 42.
(T in Million)
CASH AND CASH NTS As at As gt
March 34, 2021 Match 31, 2020
Cash and cash equivalents
Balences with banks:
« in Current Account 12.14 13.63
- I Export Eamers Foreign Currency Account 0.60 0.44
« {n Cash C *
In Cash Cradit Account B8 .86 15.49
Drafts on hand
hand " 1.20
Cash on han 3,98 8.73
Total B4.95 39.49
"Refer Note 19 -current borrowings for security for cash credlt account
(¥ In Million)
BANK BALARCES OTHER THAN DISCLOSED IN NOTE 10 ABOVE
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Balances with banks:

Tewm Deposits Accounts (with maturity up to 12 months)

[Refer note (8)]betow a73.85 80073
Other Bank Balances

Margin deposit Account [{Refer note (b)) below . 0.00

973.85 B09.T3

Term Deposits Accounts held as margin for Letter of Credit/ Suppllers CradiVSBLEC/ Bank Guarantees issusd by banks, Lodged with ¢customers
for securlty deposits

Margin deposit account reprasents margin deposit for bills discounted with bank.

(¥ in Million)
CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET) As at Ap at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Advance Income Tax & Tax Deducted at Sourca (Net of
Provislon) . 127 14

- 127.14
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As at A3 at
March 31, 2621 March 3, 2020
Non (¥ In Million) Nos (¥ in Million}
Auttioriyed
Eeuity Shares of 10 Bach 3,00,00,000.00 300,00 3,00,00,000.00 300.00
Talal 3,00,00,000.00 300.00 3,00,00,000.00 300.00
Equity Shares of 210 Each 1,66,00,000.00 166.00 1,80,00,000.00 160.00
Total 1,60,00,600.00 160.00 1,60,00,000.00 180,60
Notes:
)  Raconciliation of the shares outstanding at ihe beginalng and at the end of the reparting period:
As at Az at
Equity Sharas Miarch 31, 20 Mareh 31, 2020
Nog. (% in Millign) Noa, [T In Milllon})
At iha baginning of the year 1,80,00,008.00 164,00 1,60,00,000.00 160,00
lasued during the year o - " _ .
Quistarding at the and of the year 1,60,00,000,00 180.00 1,60,00,000.00 160,00
b) Tarms/rights attache; ity sharas
i} Eguity shares:
The Cottpany has only ona ciass of aquily shares having a par value of INR 10 each izt share, Each holder of eqully shares ia antitied to ane vota per ahare, in tha event
aof liqeidation of the company, the holders of equity sharet will be entitlad to receive remaintisg asses of the company, after distribution of ai proferential emounts. The
distribution will ba in propartion to tha numbear of equity ahares held by the sharehaldars.
1y Dividend:
The final dividend proposed by he Board of Directars Is subject to the approval of the Sharebolders in the easuing Annual General Meeting, However, in case of fintarim
dividand the prodlis are distribuled based on approval of Board of Directors,
Amount of per shara dividend recognized as distrlbution to equity shareholders:
For the yaar
endad March 31, F:"" the ’;:" ehided
2024 arch 3t, 2020
Erjuity Shares of 10 Each* u 4.50
Tedal * 4,40
* interim Dividend
The Board of Directora at ts mesting held on July 22, 2021 has recommendad s finaf dividend of 0% L. ¥ 1 per aquily share of par value T 10 each ampunting 1o ¥
19.26 Millen (including Dividend Distribution Tax) which is subject to approval of shargholders.
¢)  Details of shareholdara holting toora thar 5% of Exuity shares In ihe campany
IName of Sharehoidar As at March 31, 2029 As af March 31, 2020
Nos, % of Share Nos. % bf Shara
a) Mr, Ramesh B Parakh 60,30,000.00 37.68 §0,30,000.00 a7.69
) Mr. Jitendra B Parekh - - 18,60,000.00 11.63
c) Mrs, Gulab J Parekh Z1,80,000.00 13.50 - .
o) Mir, Kailnsh B, Parekh 18,80,000.00 11.63 18,60,000.00 11.83
m&ﬁﬁﬁﬂ_&ﬂ
b n(\dh\?rd e
G (e \‘Z’w
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THER ITY

Sncueitios Promium

Balance as &t the begianing of the year

Add: Pramium on lssue of Sharea during the year
Balance ay at the end of the year

General Resarve
Batance az at the beginning of the year

Add : Transfer from Surplug balance in the Statamant of Profit
and Loss
Balance as at the end of the year

Retained varnings

Balance as at the beginning of the year

Transition Impact of Lease aa per IND AS 116 {nat of tax}
{(Rater nota 3]

Restated balance as at the beginning of the yaar
Add :Prifit for the year
Amtaunt available for Appropriation

Less : Appropriationa

tnterlm Dividend on Equity Shares (Refer Note 45)
Total of appropriations

Balance a4 at the end of the year

ftema of Other Comprahansive Income
Remeasuraments of the net deflned benefit Plane
Balance as at the beginning of the year

Cther Comprehensive Incorna for the year

Balanca as at the end of the yoar

Total (A+ B+ C+D)

Notes :

Securities promium: The amount received in excesa of tace value of the e

General Reserve : The Company has transferred 8 padion of the net profit of the Com
of Companies Act, 1956, Mandatory transfer to general raserve is #et required under

Rezarve on first time adoption of Ind-AS

Retained Earnings : Retainad earnings are the profits that the Com

shareholgers,

Other Comprehensive Incoma accumulated Tn Other Equity, net of tax

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Remasaurement Gain or Loss on Defined Benefit Plans
thoome Tax affact

Baance ag at the end of the year

As at
March 31, 2024

460.0¢

460.00

1,118.50

1,118.50

1,678.04

1,678.04
51320
2,081,24

2,041,254

0.73}
1.01
0.29

————

3,670.03

quity shares s racognised in Securities Pramium, It can be utillzed in accordance with the
previsions of the Act, 1o lssue bonua shares, to provide far premim on redemption of shares or debenturas, wiite-off equity related axpenses like underwriting costs ate,

pany betare deckring dividend to gensry reserve pursyant o the eprtior provislons
the Catnparies Act, 2013, It neludes ¥ 200,81 Millien transferred from Revalvation

pany has eamed uli date, less eny translers 1o general rasarve, dividends or other distributions paid 1o

Ag at
Mareh 31, 2021

.72
1,36
{0.34)
.29

{T In Mlifion)
As at
March 3, 2020

480,00

460.00

——— e,

1,118,50

1,t18.60
e |

148724
{15.42}

1,471.82
7822
1,650.04

T2.00
72.00
e

1,578.04
—— ]

0.7
{0.01)
0.77)

3,166.82

(¥ In Million)

As at
March 31, 2020

(079
{02
0.0t

0.72)
L s = LV
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a)
D}

i

k)

(% in Miliion)
BORROWINGS HNon-Cuerent Curtent
Az at As at
March 34, 2024 March 31, 2020 March #1, 2021 March 31, 2020
Securad
Torm Loans
- From Banks 74.11 44,12 B85 16.11
« Fram Figansial Institutions 1.80 16.98 - 2.67
757 £1.10 28.85 18.78
Ungecured
Loan from refaled parties [Refer note 38(B)(4)(d)} 100.00 100.00 - -
100,00 100,60 - u
ITEM 161.10 28.85 18.78
Naten ;
Torm loans from Banks compeiges of: (¥ in Million)
Mamea of Bapk Cutatanding balancea Rite of Intarest (% Fepaymant Terms
Az at P.a.)
March 34, 2024 March 31, 2020
- 1.03 10.80% Repald on April |
2020,
HDFG BANK LTD
100,01 54,78 8.45% | Balance rapayalile In
38 Equated Monthly
Inttaments of ¥2_84
HDFC BAMK LTE Milllon &nding on
June, 2024, | caze of
prapayrriant,
prapayment charges
Total 100.01 E5.82
Seouritios Offered:
The said terrn ioans are secured by exclusiva firat parl passu charge on fived assets funded and collaerally secured by -
iy Equitatie mergage of Land & Builiing of the Company,
ity Fquitabls marigage of tertain premises belotying to tha dirextors and their relatives, and
iif) Persanal guarantee of cartain directors and thair refativas and corporate guarantes of cartain concains belonging to theem,
Vehicle Loans
Vehicte Loane repayable by equated monthly Instalmant and same are secured by Hypoihecation of Motor Vehictes.,
The detaila of Vehlcle |oans are as follows:- (¥ in Million)
Narme of Bank Cutstanding balances Repayable by Equatad Monthly Rate of Intarast
ey Instatment
March 31, 2021 | Macch 3, 2020
1CICE BANK LIMITED - .24 Sep, 2020 .04 B.26%
ICIGI BANK LIMITED - 3.3 Mar, 2021 0,30 8.41%
HDFG BANK LIMITED - n7e Mar, 2021 0.07 8,60%
ICIC] BANK LIMITED 296 - Fab, 2024 .09 1.65%
Total 2.98 4.41
Term loane from Financiat Institttions: (¥ In Witliat)
Name of Financial Ingtitution QOuistanding balancas Rata of Intgrest (% Repaymant
As at Pa} Terms/Sacurity
d
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 3630 Ctfara
1.60 1.60 8.00%| Repaymant Tarms:
Tha sald loans are
répayabla on malturity
ot the poficiea having
ariginal maturity terrs
20 yaars varying
Masch 23, 2024 to
April 01, 2004,
LIC LOAN gKEYMAN POLICY) Security Dfferad;
- 18.05 9.90%| Repaid on January,
2021,
LAT Housing Finance Lid
Total 1.6¢ 19,66
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(A

(B)
(a}
B

a)

GANDHAR OIL REFIN

LIMITED

LEASE LIABILITIES

Laaas Liahilities

Total

EROVISIONS

Provision for employes benefits
Pravigion for gratuity

Proviaion for leava banatiis

Total

REEERRED TAX ASSETS (NET]

Dafarred Tax Liabillity

Ditfarance batween boak and tax dapraciation
Alimwable on payment basis (Net}

trvestment

Totat (A)

Defarrad Tax Assata

Provialans

Indexation banefit on Lapd

Total (B}

Doforrod Tax Assots {Not) (A -B)

gecvred

Loans Repayable on Demand
Frotn Banka - Working Capitat
« Gash Credit facility

- Packing Gredil fadility

Totai {A)

Unzecured
Loang Repayable on Domand
Loan from related parties [Refer nota 36(F)(4)(d))

Yotal (i)
Total (A + B)
Notas:-

Waorking capital loans from banks are securad by first parj passy cha
the company and are also colatarally sacured by

iy Equitable morigage of Land & Buliding of the Company,

{¥ In Million)
Long - Term Shwrt - Term
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 1020 March 3, 201 March 31, 2020
64,78 e 51,53 38.80
64,79 118.31 61,53 48,80
Long - Term Short - Term
As at As at
March 34, 201 March 31, 2020 March 31, 20 Mareh 34, 2020
28.84 2511 454 4.24
- 028 oz
28.01 28,19 4.62 4.50
(¥ In Atiton)
An af As at
March 21, 2021 March 31, 2020
——
21.80 1.25
3.69 2.64
.08 -
2647 =09
rm——— ——
1.8 7.38
14.76 i2.62
26,492 20.01
(0.45) {16.12)
{7 ta Milliom)
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
328,54 303.95
13815 242.05
464,69 B636.00
r— ]
373 aut T
T3 207.77
468,42 B42.2T

rge on afl fixed asaets (exchuding specific fixed assets financed by term kans) and cuerem asasts of

Iy Equilable morgage of certain prernizes belonging (o the directors and thair relatives, and

lily Personal guaramtes of certain diractors and their relatives and corparate guarsntes of cenain consem balanging 1o tham,
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(c)
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Trade Payables {including acceptances)

- Due to Micro and Small Enterprises
- Bua to Othera

Notes:

As at
March 31, 2021

18,89
5,080,972

5,108.91
[ R

The disclosure as per The Micto, Smak and Medivm Erterprises Development Act, 2008, (MSMED Aat).

Dalayed paymenta gua « Principal amount
Interest due on the abova.

Total fntereal patd on &ll delayad paymanis during the year under the provision of the Act

Aa ot
March 31, 2021

Intareat due on principal armaunts paid beyend the dus date during the year but withow, the: irerest amor

imerast accrued bul not due
Total interest due but nat paid

{The above Information regarding micre and small enterprisas has been determined on the basis of Information available wilh the Campany).

FINANG TIES

Current Maturtties of Long-Tetm Borrowinga {Refer Note

Nu.15}
Enterast sccrued

- Ta related partias [{refer Note No.3a(B)(4)(a}}
- To olhars
« Secunty Deposits from dealera
Others
- Payabla for Expenses
- To related Parties ([Refer nole 36(B)(4)(g)}
- Ta atharg
= Foralgn Exchange Contract Payable
- Unelaimad Dividend
« Qther Payables
« Ta others

OTHER CURRENT LtARIL |ITIES

Income received in advance
Othors

Contract Liabillties (Advance Payment from Customerns )

Statutary Liabiities

CUBRENT TAX LIABILITIES

Incoma Tax ( net of taxes paid }

An at
March 31, 2021

28.85

28,15
877
13,07

12.88
102.18
4.22
0.03%

822

22507

An at
March 31, 2021

.32

6244
A28
106,21
AT OK A,
Ag at
March 31, 2021

18,58

18.68
T ———

(Fin Milion)
Ax at
March 31, 2020

e rr—— e

18,15
4,688,36

4,717,581
B S o

As at
March 31, 2020
e o o PP

(¥ in Minlon)
As at
March 54, 2020

18,78 |

75,88
11.63
13.87

1.05
61,13
365
4.0

8,30
164.29
T T XTI T ]
(T in Milien)
As at
March 31, 3020
R Ekaaiios e |

23.80
86,02

76,688
148.59

As at
Mareh 31, 2020




CANDHAR OIL REFINERY (INDIA) LIMITED

24 BEVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(A) Bale of products
- Petroleum Products/Speciality Qils
« Non-coking Coal
- Others

{B) Sale of services

{C) Othar operating Income

Revenue from operations (A + B + ()

Notes:

a) Retals of Services Rendarad

- Job work charges
- Cargo Handling Charges

b) Qther Operating incoma
- Exports incentives
- Sorap Sales
- Commission
- Miscellzneous Income

25 QTHER INCOME
Initerest on
- Bank Beposits

- Others

Dividend Income from a subsidiary company (Refer Note 38(BY(2)(d)

&40}

Gain on closure of a subsidiary company (Refer Note 36(B)(3)(d) &

48)
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets
Gain on fair valuation of Mutual Fund

Other Non Operating Income

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

(® In Milllon)

17,656,986
2,208.13
148

For the yoar ended
March 31, 2020

19,765.57

13,735.73
9,892.01
3.21

23,631,856

43.54

6.72

34.94

24.66 |

19,844.02

4.85
38.66

23,663.22

43.81

672

3.24
1.9
5.58
24.23

6,72

34.94

0.53
327
4.68
18.17

30.85
548

1.80
0.33
21.23

24.65

68.49

71.10
3.40

73.86

3.43
0.04
0.04

g2

158.19 |

4
\

VS
it - '\5;/{:?‘
(B 74
ﬁﬁ

At 4
"y ha e
anar %

%



28 COST OF MATER

ONSU

COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

(A) Cost of raw materials consumed

(B) PACKING MATERIAL CONSUMED
Cost of packing materials consumed

TOTAL MATERIALS CONSUMED (A + B)

TOUKIN-T

Petroleum Products/Speciality Oils

Non-Coking Coal
Others

28 CHANGES IN INV IES OF FIN
DED GO

(A) Inventories at the end of the year

Finished Goods
Stock-in-trade

(B)
Finizhed Goaods
Stock-in-trada

{Increase)/decrease In Stock (B - A}

inventories at the beginning of the year

EEITS EXPENSE

Salarkes, Wages, Bonus & Other Benefits
Contribuiion to Provident & other Fund

Gratuity

Elaff Welfare Expenses

GOODSs, Wi

=] N-

For tha year ended
March 31, 2021

(¥ In Million)

10,9356.67

Forthe year ended
Mareh 31, 2020

10,084.34

10,935.67

420,37

10,084.34

398.25

11,365.94

10,482,509

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

3,213.55
2,253.51
0.57

e A In Million)

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

5,467,683

1,334 50 |
9,259.16
2 50

10,596.16

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

{Z In Million)

286.80
8767
654.1720724

172.22
898,87

Far the year endad
March 31, 2020

172.22
298.87

1,171.09

1,171.00

204.88
1,397.34

1,602,22

516,92

431.13

" For the year ended

March 31, 2021

{¥ in Million)

21624
&.13
5.79
6.11

Far the year ended
March 31, 2020

233.27

197.61
5.88
4.78
8.79

215.07




GANDHAR OIL REFINER

30 FINANCE COSTS

Interast Expense
Other Borrowing Costs

31 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

Deprectation of Tangible agsets
Amartization of Infangible assets

32 QTHER EXPENSES

Consumption of Stores and Spares
Fower and Fuel
Electricity Charges
Labour Charges
Water Charges
Security Charges
Repairs and Maintenance
« To Plant & Machinery
-~ To Bullding
- Te Others
Laboratory Expenses
Ressarch & Developrrent expenditure
Insurance ( net of Recovery)

FPackaging Material/Charges
Freight and Transportation ( net of Recovery )
Supervislon & Testing Expenses
Vehicle Expenses
Commisslan
Legal and Frofessional Feas
Payment to Auditor (Excl 85
As Auditor:-
- Audit fees
» Tax Audit fees
I other capaoity-
« Taxation matters
- Other services
Postage, Courier and Telaphones
Frinting and Stationary
Donation
Expenditure on Comporate Social Responsibility
Advertisement and Sales Promaotion
Travelling and Conveyance
Miscellaneous Expenses
Storage Charges
Bad Debis Written off
Less: Provision for Doubtful Dabis Written Back
Advancas Written off
Provigion for Doubtful Debls
Forelgn Exchange Rate Fluctuation |L.oss/{Gain{net)
Fees and Stampa
Rent
Rates and Taxes
Bank charges

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

{¥ in Million)

212.84
12897

For the year endad
March 31, 2020

341.81

312,27
146.33

458,60

For the year endad
March 31, 2021

{¥ in Million)

68.90
47.91

Far the year ended
March 31, 2020

116,81

67.59
40.07

For the year anded
March 31, 2024

9.68
19.21
21
44.96
0.46
8.05

T.68
g.02
17.55
o.or
21.84

29.77
0.1
320.67
4.83
8.72
143,48
19.73

1.60
0.20

0.10
0.00
5.64
4.09
1.18
6.52
80.56
15.76
3011
155.46
150.24
{150.24)
18.74
161.43
(22.72)
4.26
4.96
1532
8.92

116761

107.66

(¥ in Milion)

For the year anded
March 31, 2020

15.48
17.63
37
43.03
0.41
7.7

4.50
0.15
12.95
0.29
2579

42.33
20.50
468.35
20.84
5.82
73.11
18.06

1.80
G.20

0.14
@.02
714
5.46
027
10,33
17.87
52,08
30.89
8268
14.9%9

0.6

271.83
7.1
5758

28,04
8.24

1,324.82




Note ;33 Contingent liabititlas

Claim against the company not acknowledged as debts

(T in Millian)
As at '
5.N iParticulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
a

1 [Qutstanding Letiers of Credit 2,398.22 784,68
Guarantees issued by Bank A458.64 474,78
Export obiigation against advence authorlzation

3 ilicenses issued by Director General of Foraign
Trade. 46 86 143.74

4 Demand raised by Central Excise Authorities
contested by Company. (Net of payment) 0.99 0.99

5 Demand raised by Sales Tax Authorities contested
by Company. { Net of paymeni ) 44,80 27.85

g |Demand raised by Customn Authorities contested by
Comipany (Net of paymant) A07.82 407.62

7 Demand raised by Incoma Tax Autharities
contasfed by Company (Net of payment) 509.71 509.71

b) Corporate Guaraniees
Corporate Guarantee givan by Company to Bank
for loan given io Texal Lubritech F2¢. 804 64 931.82
Total 4,772.67 3,281,008
Note

1 The Company has reviewed all its pending liigations and procesdings and has adequately provided for where
provisions are required and disclosed as contingant ffabilities where applicable, in its financlal statements, The
Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materally advarse effact on ils financial
resuits.

2 ltis not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending
resolution of the respective proceedings as it is determinabla only an receipt of judgemente/decisions panding with
varous forums/avthorities.

3 Details of Guarantee given coverad under Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013:

Guaraniee given by Company to a Bank fot loan given to Texol Lubritech FZC. The loan is obtained by Joint Vanture
4 for business purpase.
Note 34 Commitments
(i) Capital Commitments (T in Miltion)
As at
5.N |Particuars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
tetimated amount of contracts remaining to be
executed on capital accounts and nol provided for 27.28 2839
(net of advances)
27.29 28.39
Mote 35 Employee Benefits

®

Defined Contrlbution Plan

The Cempany has recognized the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss towards jts liability to Defined

Contribution Plans:-

(¥ in Million)
For the yaar anded | For the year ended
SrNo [Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2020
1i{Provident Fund 6.33 8.08
2|Employees State Insurance Fund 0.20 0.24
3| Labour Welfara Fund 0.00 0.00
Total 6.83 6,32




(ii)

Defined Bengflt Plan

The details of the Company's past relirement benefit plan for gratuity (unfunded) for its grnployees in
conformity with the principles set out in indian Accounting Standard — 19 which has been determined by an
Actuary appointed for the purpose and refied upan by the Auditors are given betow :

|

{¥ in Milllon)
For the year endod  For the year ended
Sr. NeParticulars Mamhya-:, 2021 Marnhy..".'l, 2020
Changes In present value of obligations
Prezent Value of Obligations at beginning of the year 29.35 2419
interest cost 1.86 1.83
Current Service Cost 4.38 387

Vi

Vil

Past service cost-(non vested benefits) - -
Past service cost-(vested benefits) . -
Benefits Paid (1.19) {0.55)
Contribution by plan participants - ,
Business Combinations - -

Curtailments - -
Settlements - -

Actuarial {gain)/toss on obligations (1.35) 0.02
Present Value of Obligations at end of period 33.15 29 35

Interest Expenses

Interest Cost o 1.96 1.83

Fair Value of Plan Assets
Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning - -
interest income - R

Net Liability - .
Present Value of Obligations at beginning of peried 29,33 24.19
Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning Report

Net Liability 20.35 2419

Nat Interest - -
Intarest Expenses 1.06 1.83
Interest Income - .

MNet Interest 1.96 1.83

Actual return on plan assets - -
Less Interest income included above - -
Return on plan assets excluding interest income - -

Actuarial Galn/{l.oss) on obiigation . -
Due to Demographic Assumption® - -

Due to Financial Assumption 1.06 1.62
Due to Experience (2.41) {1.60)
Total Actuariai (Gain)/il.oss {1.35) 0.02

*This figure does not reflect interrelationship between demographic assurmption and financial assumption when a
limit is applied on the benefit the effect will be shown as an experience

Wl

Fair Value of Plan Assets

Opening Fair value of plan asset - -
Adjustment to opening Fair Value of plan asset - -
Return on Plan Assets Excl. interest income - -
Interest Income - “

Confributions by Employer 1.19 Q.55
Contributions by Employee . -
Banefits Paid {1.19) {0.55)

Fair Value of Plan Assats at end




Forthe yearended  For the year ended

Sr. NoParticulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Ehd

Xl

bl

A

Xiv

XV

bAY|

xvil

Past service cost recognised

Past service cost-(non vested benefits) - -
Fast service cost-(vested benefits) - -
Average remsining future service till vesting of the benefits - -
Recognised Past service cost-non vested benefits - -
Recognised Past service cost-vesied henefits - -
Unrecognised Past service cost-non vested benefits - -

Amounts to be recognised in the balance sheet and statement of profit & Loss account

PVO at end of period 3316 29.35
Fair value of Plan assets at end of period - -
Funded status (33.15) {29,35)
Net Assets/(Lizbility) recognized in the balance sheet (33.15) {29 35)
Expense recognized in the Statement of P & L alc

Current Service Cost 4,38 38y
Net Interest 1.96 1.83

Past service cost-(non vested benefits) - .
Past service cost-(vested benefits) - -
Curtallment Effect - -
Settlement Effect - .
Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss under

"Employea benefits expense” 8.34 5.69
Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial (GainyL.oss recognised for the period (1.35) 0.02
Asset limit effect “ “
Return on plant Assets Excl. Net interest - -
Unrecagnised Actuarial (Gain)/Loss from previous period - -
Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognised in (OC]) (1.38) 0.02
Movements in the Liability recognised in Balance Sheet

Opening Met Liability 28.35 2418
Adjustments to opening balance ' - -
Fxpenses as above 6.34 5.69
Contribution paid {1.19) (0.55)
Qther Comprehensive Income(QCH {1,35) 0.02
Closing Net Liability 33158 28.35
Schedule I} of the Companies Act, 2013

Current Liability 7.28 5.50
Narn-Current Liability 25.87 23.85
Projected Service Cost 5.01 4,38

Asset Information
Not Applicable as the plan is unfunded

Assumptions as at March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020|
Mortality _ IALM (2012-14) Ult.  JALM (2008-08) Lhit.

Interest/Discount Rate 6.32% 6.80%
Rate of increase in compensation 5.00% 5.00%

Annual increase in healthcare costs

Future Changes in Maximum state healthcare benefits

Expected average remaining service bbb, 10.32 10.58
iRetirement Age e ‘ 58 Yearsg
Employee Attrition Rate : ge: 0to 58 5%




#jel uneastp ul 2bueyo anp uteb feuenioe o) Buipee) Augei U 9SB2I08D B S AU 20USY i} POSEAUIH SEL S1ed JWNoosip sy,

Sy negay 2

"let uaneEdse Alejes 1 abusyo o) anp o) 20 ueB FEUeNoE ou Ul Buynsas Aypges; uf 2BUEy2 ou 5Fassy esuay pus pabueyoun HIBLISE S [Ed UDNB{EDSS AIB[ES a1

sigy uoepsa Aees 9

‘woseas Auz Jop rafojdiuz Al wioy Buneiedes safodws a1 uo seseas BSOS BPUN YaUsg sy 5B 198ug) Buay sseloidws ayl jo ¥su o} pasodxa jou s Auedion sy
Wiy Agaabuo g

S 15819101 { JUSLGSAAU] O} pESCOXNE 10U St AUBCWIOD SU} PApUNLN Sf SLBYIS SY] BOUIS
NSiY IsaUSiu] FJUBHASTAR] ¢

ajgeHddy o8
SUGHPUOT JUSISSINGUWISY (B SI9S5Y UEl4 jo uondiase ¢

Sigeaddy JoU 8 YHOT PIpUTY 10U S SRS
SISEO L 1o sipl papads 7

% $6'Z1 Aq pasealou sey poued au 1o BuuuinBaq aug seao pousd oy
0 pus s 1B Aupget uegnsad sy} “poued Bununoose aly Buunp 9 se°g Ag paseasow fiejes o] By APERUNS % bE D AQ pESERIDY SARY SWSUSS St Japun SISGHIBIL |0 SISGLINLE A

uonebngo wausg psuyed jo siskeny |

SUDRLEN XX
294 : uonesyqo sysuag pauyep jo Buinp Bujuwewa sBeizae pajyiram
- - - - - slesse Uejd 40 SuaimsniDe sousuatg
{51°¢5) {S£°BZ) {5142) {oe'si! 59k} Gpge)smang
- - - - - Sjassy uBld
g% &2 ¥z &l 91 porad Jo pUs 18 OAd
LZOZ-E0-LE 0ZOZ-S0-1€ SLOZ£G1E SL0Z-20-1LE AL0T-CR-LE 1Ba
suasuRdweD AlNger] 1955y 0t
ISB g1z ¥ ¥4 50 ra sproded Ond
SJEaY, LAE 04 NIG [T TEE ypnog pay g pucsag sy =T

obing payzedxy | ofing pspoedxg obing paethcs | ofing pajsadug obing payoedxg | obinn pajzadig

ok paoadag] wiv

SE'LE EL°GE EFEE ooie oAd
%~ "3 OAd %+ H3 OAG ¥ WA OAd Yol+ HE OAd
8By UCOE[BIsS ABES T3 S TUNCasH] H{E

S|sAfEUY AIALSUSSINAY

{LopN W 2}
Uz jyauag pausq N




Note 36 Related Party disclosures

A. List of related parties: (where transactions have taken place )
SrNo [Name of Related Party Nature of relationship
Subsidiaries
Gandhar Global Singapore Pte. Limited*
Gandhar Shipping & Logistics Private Limited
Gandhar Qil & Energy -DMCC Wholly Owned Subsidiary
Joint Venfure
- Texol Lubritech - FZC

—

]

Key-management personnel / Individual
Having substantial interest

Nan-executive Director till Septermber 20,
2020 / Chairman and Managing Director

Ramesh Parekh w.e.f. September 21, 2020
Samir Parekh Whote Time Director
Aslesh Parekh Whole Time Director
Non-executive Director ( w.ef. January
Deena Asit Mehta 05, 2017 up to July 14, 2020)

independent Non-executive Director
(w.e.f. September 01, 2012 upte February

Sarthak Behuria 09, 2020)
' Independent Non-executive Director
Raj Kishor Singh (w.e.f. June 28, 2019)
Independent Non-executive Director
Amrita Nautiyal (w.e.f. August 17, 2020)
Indrajit Bhattacharyya Chief Financial Officer
Jayshree Soni Company Secretary

3|Relative of Key Management Personnel
Saurabh Parekh

Jitendra Parekh (till August 23, 2020)
Sunita Parekh

Sharmistha Parekh

Dimple Parekh

Nishita Parekh

4 Enterprises owned / controlled by key management personnel or directors or thelr
relatives or person having significant interest

Parekh Bulk Carriers

Parekh Petroleum Products

Gandhar Coals & Mines Private Limited (Gandhar Coals & Mines converted to company
w.e.f. August 31, 2018)

Gandhar Infrastructure Project Private Limited

Natura Pure Wellness Private Lid.

5|0thers
Kamlaben Babulal Charitable Trust

*Struck off with effect from November 9, 2020
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37 Research & Developmant Expenditure (¥ in Millign)
Year Ended
SrNo jPartlculars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2020
Revenue Expenditure
a) Salary, Wages & other banafits 20,28 2222
b) Labgratory Expense 0.68 1,08
&) Other Exp, 0.35 0.65
)] Travelling & Conveyance Expanses (.20 0.58
a) Telaphone Expense 0.00 0.01
f Testing Expenzes 0.28 0.01
a) Repairs & Maintenance G.07 126
Totat 21.84 256.79
Capital Expanditura
a) Laboratory Equipmant 4.50 9.42 |
)] Computer & Sofiware 242 0.34
Total 7.02 9.76
Total 29.76 38.66
38 Seamental Reporting
a}  Primary Segment reporting (by buslness segmenth:

The company has identified Business Segmen! as the Prim
nature of the products, differing risks and returns,

Compositlon of the business seqmant

ary Segment, Segments have been identified taking into aceount the
organizational structure and internal reporling syslem,

Name of the Segment

Comptlses of

Pelrolaum Froducts

MNon-coking Coal

Others

Manufacturing and Trading of Petrolaum Froducts ang

Specially Qils
Trading of Non-goking Coal

Consignment and Dai-gradera Agency and other trading

lterts.
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iv)

8)

Segmen! Revenue, Segment Results, Segments Assets and Segment Liabilities inciudes the respective amaunts identiflable to aach
of the Segments and also amounts aliocated on a razsanable (estimated) basis, if any,

Secondary Segment reporting (ly Geographical ciemarcatlnn):
{i) The Sacondary Segment is based on geographical market L.a. Domestic Market and Qvarseas Markals,

{il) information about Secondary Segments are as follows (% In Million)y
Particulars Year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 202¢
Segment Revenye
Domestic Market 15,465.94 19,356,531
QOversees Market 437808 4,306.81
Total 19.844.02 23,863,22
Segmant Assets
Domasfic Market 9,136.17 8,693.61
Oversees Market 845,51 B32.90
Tolal 10.081.67 9,526.50

(I} The Geographlcat Segments consists of
* Sales in domestic market represent sales to customers located in india.
* Bales in overseas market reprasent sales to customers located oufside India,

{Iv] The Company has common fixed assefs for producing goods/providing services to domestic as well as overzeas markets. Hance,

separate figures for fixed assets/ addition to fixed assets have not been furmished,

Th S
Gl

o)

[44)

E)
¥ o
%h% U c—r;;aui\\




Note 40 Income Tax Expensa (¥ in Mittton)
&,
No Particulars Far the yoar ended For the year anded
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
i)  Tax Expense recognised in the Statement of Promt ang Loss
Current Income Tax 184.00 46.00
Deferred Innome Tax Liability / (Assat), net
Crigination and reversal of temporary differences 15.32 (22.93)
Deferred Tax Expense 18.52 (22.93)
Tax Expense For the Year 109.32 23.07
Iy Amourts recognised in Other Comprehensive Incomea
tterns that will not be reclassified 1o Profit or Loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan ] 1,35 (0.05)
1.35 {0.62)
iy Reconciliation of effective tax rata
Profit Before Tax 712.52 205.38
Tax rale 0.25 0.25
Tax using the Campany's dormestic tax rate 178.33 51.69
Tax effact of;
Non-deductible tax expanses / disaliowances under lncorme 4,18 1.88
Tax Act (Net) ‘
Tax-exemp! income - -
Etfect of income taxed at specific rate - (7.21)
Dedustions under Chapter VI A of Incoma Tax Act - -
Cihers 0.48 ((.38)
184.00 46.00
(¥ in Mitlion)
v}  |Mavement in deferred tax balances Net Balance as on | Recognised in Recognisad | Net Balance as
01.04.2020 P&L in OCI on 31.03,2021
Property, Plant and Equipiment, Investment Proparties 1.25 20,55 21.80
Allowable on payment basis (Nel) 2.64 0.95 3,61
Investment fn unquoted aquity Instruments{Mutual Funds) w 0.08 .08
Provisions 4.11) 0.34 (11.18)
Indrexation benefit on Lend (2.14) {14.76)
Net tax liabilities 18,32 .34 (D.45)
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Note 43 Master netting or Simitar agreements
The fallowing table prasents the recegnised financial instruments that are offset, or subject to enforceable master netting
arrangements and other similar agreemeants but not offset, as at Balance Sheet dates:
(Z in Million)

Particulars Effect of offsetting on balance Sheat Related amounts not offset

Gross Amount | Gross Amounts Net Amounts Amounts Subject | Financial | Net Amounts
setoffinthe | presented inthe | to master netting | Instruments
Balance sheet Balance sheet arrangements collateral

As af March 31, 2021
Financial Assats
Pecivativas instrumants - . - “ . .

Financial Liabilities

Derivatives Instruments 4.22 - 4.22 " W 4.22
(T In Milllan)
Particulars Effect of offsetting on balance Sheet Related amounis not offset
Grosa Amount

Gross Amotints Net Amounts Amounts Subject |  Financlal
setoffinthe | presented inthe | to master netting |instruments
Balance sheat Balance sheet arrangements cotlateral | Net Amounts

As at March 31, 2020
Financial Assets
Derivatives Instruments 37.895 - aA7.95 (3.65) - 34,30

Financial Liabiltiey
Derivatives Instruments 365 - 3.65 {3.65) - -

Offsetting arrangements

Darlvatives

The Company enters into derivative contracts for hedging foreign exchange exposures, Agreements with derivative counterparties are hased
an an t8DA Masler Agreement, Uinder tha terms of thesa arrangements, only where certain cradit evenls accur (such as dafault), the net
position owing | recelvable to a single counterpanty In the same currency will be taken as owing and all the ralevant arrangaments ferminated,
As the company does not presantly have a legally enforcaable right of set-off, these amounts have not been offset in the Balance Sheet.
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44 Earnin

5 Per Share
Yoar entged
Parilculars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Profit avallable for Equity Sharaholders { ¥ in Million ) 513,20 178.22
Waighted average number of Shares used in computing Basic and
diluted earings per shara, 1,60,00.000 1,60,00.000
Nominal Value of Per Equity Shares (%) 16.00 10.00
Basic and diluted Earnings Per Share (8) 32,08 11.14
45 Dividand on Equlty Shares
Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2021

Mareh 31, 2020

Proposed Final Dividend 31 per sharas®

Interim Oividend 210 per shares™ - 72.00
Walghted average number of Shares 1,60,00,000 1,60.00,000
MNominal Valye of Per Equity Shares (8) 10 10

“Proposad Dividend s subject to Shareholders' 5

liability 4= at Balance Sheet date,

pproval in the ensuing Annual General Mesting and has not been recognisad as a

As on March 31, 2021, tha tax llability with respeat to the dividends proposed is ¥ Nit {March 31, 2020 : ¥ Nil).

The Board of Directors at its meating held on July 22, 2021 has recommended
value T 10 each amounting to ¥ 19.26Million (including Dividend Gistribution T

46 Corporate Social Responsibility (CBR) ;
Gross amount required 1o be spent by the Gompany during the Fitancial year 2020-21 F 3,70 Million

a)
b)

a final dividend of 10% i.e. ¥ 1 per equity share of par
@x) which is subject to approval of shareholders.

Amount apant during the vear on (¥ in Milllon)
Farticulars in Cash Yet to ha paid in Cash Total
Conslructian / Acquisition of Any Assels = - -
On Purpase other than (1) above 6.52 - 6.52

[Refer note 36(B)(1){)] for contribution to a trust controfled by the company]

47 IND AS 115 - Revenue from Gontracts with Guﬁtumarq

N}

(i}

Disaggregated revenue

The chief operational declsion maker manitors the operating resulls of
of raking decisions aboul resource allocetion and performance assass

its Business Seaments separately for the purpase
ment. Segmert parformance is evaluated based on

Profit or Loss and iz measured consistently with profit or loss In the financial staterments. Qperating segments have baan identified

on the basis of nature of products / services.

The company uses the same opetating segment information for feporing purposes in all its communlcation 1o various stakeholders

Le. annual report, investar presentations

For disclosures containing the disaggregated revenus - Refer note no 38 - Segment Raporiing

{Z In Million)

Contract balances

2020-21

201920

Cantract assets

Unbilled ravenue

As at April 1, 2020

Add: Addition during the year

lLess; Transferred to recalvabla
Ag at Mar 31, 2021

Contract liability

Advances from cuslomers
As at April 1, 2020

Add: Addition during the year

Less: Revanua racognised during the year
As at Mar 31, 2021

Refer note no 8 - for Trada recelvables balances

a8.02
55.93

86.97
83,15

153.95
(91.50)

188.12
{21,113

98.02




(i)

Remaltning performance obligations

The aggregate amount of the transaction price allccated to the performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfind)
as of the end of the reporting period are having performance obligations, which are a part of the contracts that has an original
axpected duration of one year or less, Hence, the company has applied practical expadient as per Para 121 of the Ind As 115 In
regards lo remaining parformance abligations.

48 Closure of Subsidiary company - Gandhar Global Singapore Pte Limited

The oversaas subsidiary company - Gandhar Globa! Singapore Pte Limited ceased its eperatians during previous financial year and
the company was siruckoff with effect frem Movember 9, 2020,

49 Dividend Income

&0

Duiing the previous year ended March 31, 2020, the company has received dividend from = wholly owned foreign subsidiary -
Gandhar Global Singapore Ple Lid, amounting to INR 73.96 million. Dividend received on 1 miilion sharas of SGL 1 each @ SGO
1.350 per share amounting to SGD 1.35 milion equivalent to INR 73.98 millian. Dividend declarad by subsidiary company on March
9, 2020 $GD 1,125 Million and on March 10, 2020 SGD 0.135 milllan and recaived by company an March 17, 2020 INR 66.49 million
& March 27, 2020 INR 7,46 million respetively.

Disclosure regarding loans glven, invesiments made and guarantee given pursuant to section 188(4) of the Companies Act, 2013

a)
b)
c)

Loan Givan - Refar note no.5
Investments made - Refer note no.4
Guarantae given — Refer note no.33 (b) & 36 (C) _




&1 All amounts distlosed in the financial stataments and notes have been rounded off to the nearast million as per the requirements of Schadule
i, unless otharwise stated.
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